
Manor 3364-2F



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 1 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1VARIANCE REQUEST FORM

BALLESA
Line

BALLESA
Line

BALLESA
Line

BALLESA
Text Box
Sierra

BALLESA
Rectangle

BALLESA
Text Box
LH21B



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 2 of 20

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS

BALLESA
Polygon

BALLESA
Polygon

BALLESA
Text Box
View facing West towards the rear balcony.PIC #1

BALLESA
Callout
Proposed location of condenser 

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-3F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-2F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-1F

BALLESA
Cloud+

BALLESA
Cloud+
3364-1F has an extended rear patio not allowing for the condenser to be placed in this area.

BALLESA
Text Box
View facing North towards the rear of B3364.PIC #2

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-1F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-2F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-3F

BALLESA
Callout
Proposed location of condenser 

BALLESA
Dimension
35-7/16"

BALLESA
Dimension
27-9/16"



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 3 of 20

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2 PHOTOS

BALLESA
Polygon

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-3F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-2F

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-1F

BALLESA
Text Box
View facing South towards the rear of B3364.PIC #3

BALLESA
Text Box
View facing East from the rear of B3364.PIC #4

BALLESA
Callout
Proposed location of condenser 



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 4 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
N

BALLESA
Arrow

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3AERIAL 

BALLESA
Text Box
3364-2FPuntaAlta

BALLESA
Text Box
SYMBOL DENOTES LOCATION OF MANOR

BALLESA
Text Box

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Text Box



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 5 of 20

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Highlight

BALLESA
Callout
3364-2F

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3LOCATION MAP 



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 6 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3TRACT MAP 

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Highlight



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 7 of 20

BALLESA
Image

BALLESA
Snapshot

BALLESA
Text Box
PIC #1

BALLESA
Snapshot

BALLESA
Text Box
PIC #2

BALLESA
Snapshot

BALLESA
Text Box
PIC #3

BALLESA
Snapshot

BALLESA
Text Box
PIC #4

BALLESA
Text Box
GENERAL NOTES:1. 3364-2F is a middle unit in a building with 21 units.2. The measurements of the condenser are 27-9/16" H x 35-7/16" W x 13" D.3. 3364-1F has an extended patio that does not allow space for the condenser of 2F to be placed on the ground level4. The condenser will be wall mounted above the existing wall sleeve.   5. The City confirmed no specific clearance is needed between the wall sleeve and the condenser as long as it does not obstruct the existing sleeve.6.  Installing the condenser on the roof will significantly increase the cost for the owner.

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4EXISTING FLOOR PLAN

BALLESA
Cloud



EL
EV

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 –

H
V

A
C

 O
U

TD
O

O
R

 U
N

IT
 L

O
C

A
TI

O
N

Sc
al

e:
 N

o
t 

to
 S

ca
le

 f
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 O
n

ly

ELEVATION PLAN FOR HVAC 
OUTDOOR UNIT LOCATION

THIRD MUTUAL SIERRA 4     3364-2F
3364 PUNTA ALTA UNIT 2F, LAGUNA WOODS, CA 92637

A
M

S
G

EN
ER

A
L 

C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 A
N

D
 

D
ES

IG
N

 S
ER

V
IC

ES
21

 S
au

ci
to

 
Fo

o
th

ill
 R

an
ch

, C
A

 9
26

10
(8

88
)A

M
S-

06
65

  
56

12
41

 B

D
at

e:

D
ra

w
n

 
B

y:

2
/2

8
/2

0
2

3

JL
N

/A
M

S

R
EV

. D
at

e:
  3

-2
2

-2
0

23

C
LI

EN
T 

/ 
H

O
M

EO
W

N
ER

:
JO

A
N

 R
U

TK
O

U
SK

I

TITLE AND SITE ADDRESS:

3
/2

2
/2

0
2

3
M

-1

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
SI

ER
R

A
 4

 3
3

6
4

-2
F

3
3

6
4

 P
U

N
TA

 A
LT

A
 U

N
IT

 2
F

LA
G

U
N

A
 W

O
O

D
S,

 C
A

 9
2

6
3

7

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
M

A
P

R
EA

R
 E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
Sc

al
e:

 N
o

t 
to

 S
ca

le
 f

o
r 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 O

n
ly

2
N

D
FL

O
O

R

R
EA

R
 S

EC
TI

O
N

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 V

IE
W

 
0

1

M
-1

Sc
al

e:
 N

o
t 

to
 S

ca
le

 f
o

r 
R

ef
er

en
ce

 O
n

lyO
u

td
o

o
r

2
ZO

N
E

M
in

i-
Sp

lit
W

it
h

Li
n

e
Se

t
C

o
ve

r

3
rd

FL
O

O
R

1
ST

FL
O

O
R

0
2

M
-1

01

M-1

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S:
1

.
C

o
n

d
en

sa
te

 li
n

e 
to

 f
o

llo
w

 e
xi

st
in

g 
C

ab
le

 T
V

 C
ab

le
 r

u
n

 a
s 

sh
o

w
n

.
2

.
D

ra
in

 r
u

n
 t

o
 t

er
m

in
at

e 
@

 f
ir

st
 f

lo
o

r 
P

la
n

te
r 

w
it

h
 a

 s
ee

p
ag

e 
d

ra
in

 
in

st
al

le
d

 p
er

 U
M

C
.

3
.

A
ll 

H
ar

d
w

ar
e 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

ra
ck

et
 f

o
r 

N
ew

 A
/C

 m
u

st
 in

cl
u

d
e 

sp
lit

 
an

d
 f

la
t 

w
as

h
er

s 
ga

lv
. o

r 
SS

.
4

.
In

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

N
ew

 O
u

td
o

o
r 

H
V

A
C

 U
n

it
  S

h
al

l a
d

h
er

e 
to

 L
ag

u
n

a 
W

o
o

d
s 

St
an

d
ar

d
 4

 A
ir

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
in

g 
U

n
it

s/
H

ea
t 

P
u

m
p

s
5

.
C

o
n

d
en

sa
te

 li
n

e 
an

d
 R

ef
ri

ge
ra

n
t 

Li
n

es
 S

h
al

l b
e 

In
st

al
le

d
 w

it
h

 a
 

C
o

ve
r 

an
d

 t
o

 m
at

ch
 in

 c
o

lo
r 

o
f 

Ex
is

t'
g 

st
ru

ct
u

re
.

6
.

N
ew

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
in

i-
Sp

lit
 A

ir
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

er
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
fa

ce
 a

n
y 

ad
ja

ce
n

t 
n

ei
gh

b
o

ri
n

g 
st

ru
ct

u
re

 t
o

 d
et

er
 f

ro
m

 c
u

rb
 a

p
p

ea
l o

r 
vi

o
la

te
 L

ag
u

n
a 

W
o

o
d

s 
St

an
d

ar
d

s 
4

 g
u

id
el

in
es

. 
 

Ex
is

t’
g 

C
ab

le
 T

V
 C

ab
le

R
u

n

D
ET

A
IL

 R
EA

R
 V

IE
W

 E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
Sc

al
e:

 N
o

t 
to

 S
ca

le
 f

o
r 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 O

n
ly

0
2

M
-1

M
A

N
O

R
 /

 S
IE

R
R

A
 4

 
3

3
6

4
 P

U
N

TA
 A

LT
A

  U
N

IT
 2

F

2
3

0
-B

2
L 

W
al

l M
in

i-
Sp

lit
 B

ra
ck

et

3
/8

” 
La

g 
o

r 
To

gg
le

 
H

ar
d

w
ar

e 
3

 P
lc

s
ea

. s
id

e

1
/4

” 
B

o
lt

 H
ar

d
w

ar
e 

2
 p

lc
s

ea
. 

Si
d

e 
@

 O
u

td
o

o
r 

U
n

it
 m

o
u

n
ts

Se
e

Su
p

p
o

rt
D

et
ai

l#
3

/
M

-1

Interior 2X Wall Structure Exist’g
D

ET
A

IL
 #

3
Ex

is
t’

g 
H

e
at

P
u

m
p

 S
le

ev
e

Exterior Wall Exist’g

Ty
p

. E
xi

st
’g

 P
TA

C
Sl

ee
ve

 t
o

 r
em

ai
n

A
M

S 
G

en
er

al
 C

o
n

tr
ac

to
r 

an
d

 D
es

ig
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 

1
’-

4
”

8’-3”

2
’-

6
” 

B
O

TT
O

M
 O

F 
M

IN
I-

SP
LI

T 
TO

 
D

EC
K

 F
.F

.

SE
E 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S 
1

 &
 5

 
C

o
n

d
en

sa
te

 L
in

e 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n

FU
JI

TS
U

A
O

U
24

R
LX

FZ
M

IN
I-

SP
LI

T
H

EA
T

P
U

M
P

 M
U

LT
I-

ZO
N

E 
O

U
TD

O
O

R
U

N
IT

27
9/

16
”H

x
35

7/
16

”W
 x

 1
4 

¼
” 

D

D
IS

TA
N

C
E 

FR
O

M
 M

IN
I-

SP
LI

T 
TO

 E
X

IS
T’

G
 T

V
 C

A
B

LE
 

C
O

V
ER

R
EF

. C
EI

LI
N

G
 H

G
T 

FR
O

M
 F

.F
. T

O
 F

.C
. O

F 
B

A
LC

O
N

Y 
D

EC
K

2
3

0
-D

L1
6 

6
” 

LI
N

E 
C

O
V

ER
 

42”

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 8 of 20

BALLESA
Rectangle

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4SCOPE PLAN(S)PROPOSED



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 9 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 10 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 11 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 12 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 13 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



Agenda Item #9d 
Page 14 of 20

BALLESA
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 4MINI SPLIT CONDENSER SPEC. SHEET



ATTACHMENT 5 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL DRAFT 
 
 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
Manor:   3364-2F 
 
Variance Description: Install condenser on balcony stucco wall 
 
A Variance for Alterations has been granted at the above manor, subject to the attached 
plans stamped approved and is subject to a final inspection by the Division.  Any 
variations to the approved attached plans are not allowed and could result in a stop work 
notice and/or disciplinary action taken against the Member. 
 
 
Manor-Specific Conditions: 
 
A. General Comments: 

 
A.1. The member shall install a condenser that is close in color to the existing 

building color, not white.  
 

A.2. The member shall install the condenser as per Standard 4 and properly redirect 
water drainage to avoid spillage to the downstairs manor.  

 
A.3. The Member shall install modesty panel to the balcony railing as per Standard 

19 to conceal the condenser from the ground level.  
 

A.4. The Member shall provide plans, specifications, and calculations from a duly 
licensed architect or structural engineer to conform to the Building Code for all 
foundation, framing, and beam additions for the work of this variance.  
 

A.5. A City of Laguna Woods Building Permit will be required and provided to Manor 
Alterations to verify all code requirements for new or modified structural 
components, and shoring have been satisfied. 

 
B. Requirements for Mutual Consent for Alterations: 

B.1. Prior to the Issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of 
unit specific plans, specifications and calculations prepared by a licensed 
architect or structural engineer depicting the proposed improvement must be 
submitted to the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village 
Community Center.  The plans must depict any required structural 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 15 of 20



modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building is maintained 
upon completion of the proposed improvement. 
 
 

C. Requirements for Final Inspection by Manor Alterations: 
 
C.1. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, a scanned copy of the City-

Approved and Stamped plan set shall be submitted to the Division office 
located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center. The plans must 
depict the work as completed and approved by the City, including all structural 
and architectural modifications. 
 

C.2. Prior to Final Inspection by Manor Alterations, all altered exterior surfaces 
should match the Building texture and color; the approved colors and materials 
are available at Resident Services, located at the Community Center first floor. 

 
 
General Conditions: 
 
G. General Conditions 
 

G.1. No improvement shall be installed, constructed, modified or altered at 3364-
2F, (“Property”) within the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (“Mutual”) without an 
approved Mutual Consent for Alterations application for the improvement has 
been made to, and approved, in writing, by, the Village Management Services, 
Inc. (“VMS, Inc.”), Alterations Division (“Division”), or, in the event of a 
Variance from the Mutual’s Alteration Standards, the Architectural Control and 
Standards Committee (“ACSC”). In the event written permission is given for 
the installation, construction, modification or alteration of any improvement(s) 
upon the Property, the Member or Members (“Member”) agrees to comply with 
the Mutual’s Governing Documents and any specific terms or conditions 
imposed, and that the installation, construction, modification or alteration shall 
be in strict compliance with the terms of the approval. 
 

G.2. Member hereby consents to and grants to the Mutual and the Maintenance 
and Construction Department , and their representatives, a right of entry upon 
the Property, with reasonable notice, to inspect the  permitted improvements, 
and for their representatives and contractors to remedy any violation upon the 
Property, including, but not limited to, unauthorized disturbance of regulated 
materials, removing trash from common areas, removing any improvement 
installed without approval or modifying an improvement to bring the same into 
compliance with the terms of the approval. Any remedial work performed on 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 16 of 20



behalf of the manor owner as a result of violations to Mutual policy and/or 
regulatory violations will be processed as a chargeable service. 

 
G.3. All costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of the 

improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s 
Member at 3364-2F and all future Mutual Members at 3364-2F.  

 
G.4. Member shall be responsible for all activity by contractors, subcontractors, 

material suppliers and their employees and agents and any others who 
perform work on the Property, including any violation of the Mutual’s Governing 
Documents, including, but not limited to, traffic and parking violations, 
maintenance of a clean job site at all times, damage to Mutual property, and 
use of Mutual property for storage of equipment or materials without prior 
approval.  Member acknowledges and agrees that all such persons are his/her 
invitees.  Member shall be responsible for informing all his/her invitees of the 
Mutual’s Rules and Regulations. 

 
G.5. Member shall be liable for any violation of the Mutual’s Governing Documents 

by any invitee, including any fine, assessment or other charge levied in 
connection therewith. 

 
G.6. Member is responsible for following the gate clearance process 

(http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/residents/resident-services and click on 
documents and Business Pass Application Instructions) in place to admit 
contractors and other invitees. 

 
G.7. Member’s contractors and other invitees shall have business signage on 

vehicles and travel to and from the job site by the most direct route available 
and are not authorized to use Mutual recreational facilities or other amenities 
while they are in the Village for performance of work in connection with the 
Property. 

 
G.8. Parking of contractors or other invitees’ vehicles is prohibited in covered 

resident parking, open resident spaces, handicapped spaces or fire lanes.  
Contractors or other invitees must park on the street.  To the extent possible 
contractors’ or other invitees’ vehicles should be limited in number. 

 
G.9. Must obtain an approved Mutual Consent application within 180days or 6 

months of the variance approval before it is expired. 
 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 17 of 20



G.10. Member(s) of the Property must sign and submit to the Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc., 
at the Division office located in the Laguna Woods Village Community Center, 
an executed and notarized “Recordable Common Area Exclusive Use 
Revocable License” for a proposed improvement that would utilize any portion 
of the Mutual’s Common Area. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for 
Manor Alterations, that “Recordable Common Area Exclusive Use Revocable 
License” must be filed with the Orange County Clerk/Recorder. 

 
 

G.11. A City of Laguna Woods permit may be required, which may include the 
requirement to obtain clearance from the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District (Asbestos Hot Line at (909) 396-2336).  Prior to the issuance of a City 
of Laguna Woods permit an applicant must present the approprite Mutual 
Consent issued by Manor Alterations to the City. Please complete this step 
with Manor Alterations prior to submitting an application to the City. Once the 
City issues a Building Permit, you must submit a copy of the permit with the 
permit number to Manor Alterations. The City permit must be finalized within 
the prescribed timeframe, and a copy of the final permit must be submitted to 
the Division within two weeks. 

 
G.12. Prior to the issuance of a Mutual Consent for Alterations, a complete set of unit 

specific plans prepared by a licensed architect or structural engineer depicting 
the proposed improvement must be submitted to the Division office located in 
the Laguna Woods Village Community Center.  The plans must depict any 
required structural modifications ensuring the structural integrity of the building 
is maintained upon completion of the proposed improvement. 

 
G.13. All improvements must be installed in accordance with the California State 

Building Code, and the published Mutual Architectural Alterations Standards, 
Policies and Guidelines. See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com. 

 
G.14. During construction, work hours established by the Mutual and the Noise 

Ordinance set forth in the City of Laguna Woods Municipal Code must be 
adhered to at all times. 

 
G.15. During construction, both the Mutual Consent for Alterations and the City 

Building Permit must be on display for public view at all times in a location 
approved by the Division. 

 
G.16. It is mandatory that no waste or materials associated with the construction be 

dumped in the Village trash bins; such waste or materials associated with the 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 18 of 20

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


construction must be disposed of offsite by the contractor.   
 

G.17. A dumpster is approved for placement at the location identified by Security 
Staff by calling 949-580-1400. All dumpsters must conform to the Policy for 
Temporary Containers. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of 
Laguna Woods waste hauler and must be maintained at all times. 

 
G.18. Dumpsters must be ordered from the approved City of Laguna Woods waste 

hauler and must be maintained at all times. 
 

G.19. A portable bathroom is approved for placement at the location identified by 
Security Staff by calling 949-580-1400. 

 
G.20. The Mutual Consent for Alterations expires six months after the date of Notice 

of Approval issued by Manor Alterations, unless an application is submitted 
with fees and approved by the Division for an extension.  Only one extension 
for a maximum of an additional six months may be granted. 

 
G.21. Violations of the forgoing conditions or the Mutual’s Governing Documents 

(See http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com), including, but not limited to, unpaid 
assessments, work outside the approved plans, excessive noise, illegal 
dumping, or working after hours, will result in disciplinary action, which could 
result in a stop work notice, loss of privileges and/or severe fines to the  
Member.  Such fines left unpaid will result in forfeiture of a portion or all of the 
Conformance Deposit required above or other legal remedy. 

 
G.22. Member shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Third Laguna Hills Mutual 

and its officers, directors, committee Members and agents from and against 
any and all claims, demands, costs, fines, judgments, settlements and any 
other costs, expenses, amounts and liabilities arising from Member’s 
improvements and installation, construction, design and maintenance of same. 

 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 19 of 20

http://www.lagunawoodsvillage.com/


ATTACHMENT 6 

RESOLUTION DRAFT 

 

 

RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 

Variance Request 

WHEREAS, Ms. Joan A Rutkouski of 3364-2F Punta Alta, a Sierra style manor, requests 
Architectural Controls and Standards Committee approval of a variance to install condenser on 
balcony stucco wall; and 

WHEREAS, a Neighborhood Awareness Notice was sent to Members of affected units notifying 
them that an application to make an alteration to a neighboring unit had been made and that 
comments or objections could be made in writing to the Architectural Controls and Standards 
Committee or in person at the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee Meeting on April 
10, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee reviewed the variance and 
moved for approval of the variance to install condenser on balcony stucco wall; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, on April 18, 2023, the Third Laguna Hills Mutual Board 
hereby approves the request to install condenser on balcony stucco wall; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all costs for maintenance, repair, renovation, replacement or removal of 
the improvement, present and future, are the responsibility of the Property’s Member at 3364-2F 
Punta Alta and all future Mutual Members at 3364-2F Punta Alta; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized on 
behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 

Agenda Item #9d 
Page 20 of 20



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 10, 2023 
FOR:  Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
SUBJECT: Revision to Standard 41: Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution to revise Standard 41: Solar 
Panels, 1 Story Buildings.  

BACKGROUND 
The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) initiated a review of the current 
Standard 41: Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings (Attachment 1) and proposed revisions to the 
Standard to allow for the installation of solar panels in 1-story buildings. Standard 41 was last 
revised in September 2019, via Resolution 03-19-95 (Attachment 2). 

DISCUSSION 
On February 27, 2023, the ACSC reviewed the Standard and directed staff to make additional 
revisions to the Standard (Attachment 3) for applicability, usefulness, and current technology.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The installation of solar panels will be considered an alteration and the installation cost will be 
the responsibility of the requesting mutual member. The cost to repair any damage to mutual 
property resulting from an alteration solar panel will also be borne by the responsible mutual 
member.  

Prepared By: Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director  

Reviewed By: Michael Horton, Manor Alterations Manager   
Gavin Fogg, Manor Alterations Supervisor  

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Current Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Attachment 2 – Current Standard 41 Resolution 03-19-95 
Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Attachment 5 – Revised Standard 41 Resolution 03-23-XX 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 1 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 1 of 5 

Standard 41 - Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
ADOPTED JANUARY 2008, RESOLUTION 03-08-09 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 
REVISED OCTOBER 2014, RESOLUTION 03-14-107 
REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 03-16-08 
REVISED AUGUST 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-95 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1. In this section, “Solar Panel” refers to roof mounted panels that use 
solar energy to either heat water directly (Solar Water Heating 
System), or to generate electricity using photo-voltaic cells (Solar 
Electric System). 

2.2. This section refers only to single story dwellings and the roof 
section of the building that covers the footprint of the Manor for 
which the request is being submitted. 

2.3. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are 
the responsibility of the Mutual Member. 

2.4. All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the 
typical cost for roof replacement that are due to the solar panel 
installation shall be borne by the Member(s). 

2.5. Detailed, site-specific plans for all water and electrical lines for the 
solar panel installation, including penetrations, shall be submitted to 
the Manor Alterations Department for approval. 

2.6. Should the proposed location of solar panels be in an area that is 
technically Common Area, e.g., the roof, then the applicant is 
required to execute and submit to Third Laguna Hills Mutual, prior 
to installation of a solar panels, the “Agreement Regarding Solar 
Panel Installation on Common Area Property” or similarly titled 
document. 

ATTACHMENT 1 - CURRENT STANDARD 41

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 2 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 
2.7. Structural calculations for the existing roof structure, signed and 

wet-stamped by a California-licensed structural engineer are 
required to ensure the solar panel system does not compromise the 
existing roof structure and that the roof is adequate to accept 
attachments and to support all applied loadings, per the California 
Building Code and any other applicable laws or ordinances. 

 
2.8. The mounting system must have a current Engineering Certification 

that certifies the system will be structurally adequate and satisfy 
building codes when installed per the instructions. 

 
2.9. Flat roof mounting shall be set with the highest point flush with the 

top of the parapet wall so as to be hidden from the ground or 
surrounding properties. The lowest point of the solar array 
equipment shall be a minimum of 10 inches above the flat roof. 
The stanchions used to connect the array to the roof must be round 
and have the top of the stanchion able to be water tight. 

 
2.10. Flat roof mounting must leave a minimum of two feet between the 

panels and the parapet to permit access. 
 

2.11. Sloped roof mounting requires CertainTeed Landmark TL 
composition shingle roofing on the entire roof area where the array 
will be located. The array must then be trimmed with light weight 
tiles (LWT) to match in materials and appearance of the original 
roof being replaced. The current composition shingle roofing 
standards for waterproofing the roof at the time of installation must 
be followed and will include a single layer underlayment, drip edge 
metal, step flashings at existing skylights and chimneys, 
penetration flashings for all vents and vent pipes, and valley metal 
at valley areas. 

 
2.12. Water and electric lines must be set on blocking above the surface 

to facilitate re-roofing. 
 

2.13. Detailed plans of the installation of roof jacks should be submitted 
to the Permits and Inspections office for approval. 

 
2.14. Lag screws must have adequate pullout strength and shear 

capacities. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 3 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 
2.15.  Flat roofs with PVC roofing shall have all tie-in work completed by 

the Mutual Roofing Contractor at the Member’s expense. 
 

2.16. Connections to the manor’s electrical system must be coordinated 
with the local electric utility. 

 
2.17. Solar Electric Panels, and their associated electrical components, 

must be UL approved, or comply with equivalent international 
standards. 

 
2.18. A solar panel system may only serve a single manor. 

 
2.19. Leasing of Solar Panels is permitted only under the following 

conditions: 
a. Only prepaid leases are permitted, and Member must 

provide the Mutual a copy of the pre-paid lease contract 
together with proof of payment before any work on the 
construction or installation of the solar panel system begins; 
and 

b. The pre-paid lease contract must be assigned by the 
Member. 

 
2.20. All solar panel installations located on the roof of a unit must be 

inspected and approved by a VMS Inc. Roofing Inspector before 
the solar array is installed and again, after roof replacement is 
complete, prior to a final inspection of the Mutual Consent. 

 
 
3.0 OBLIGATIONS 

 

3.1 The Mutual Member must sign and submit to Third Laguna Hills 
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc, Community Services, the “Recordable 
Common Area Agreement” for the subject solar panel installation 
utilizing Common Area. 

 
3.2 Member accepts responsibility and agrees to pay for repairs to 

common areas, including but not limited to roofing, framing, wiring 
and drywall caused, in whole or in part, by Member’s solar panels 
or their installation, operation, maintenance or removal, and 
Member accepts all responsibility for damage to Member’s Manor 
or other Manors or to personal property caused or contributed to by 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 4 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 

 
the installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the solar 
panels. 

 
3.3 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated 

with removing, altering, covering or reinstalling the alteration as 
may be necessary or appropriate to allow the Mutual to conduct 
maintenance or repairs of common area. If the Mutual gives a 
minimum of thirty (30) days advance written notice of the need to 
remove, alter, cover or replace the solar panel and the Member 
does not accomplish this within five calendar days before the 
removal, alteration, or covering is necessary, then the Mutual will 
accomplish the removal, alteration or covering at the Member’s 
cost, which will be billed as a Chargeable Service to the Member. 

 
3.4 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated 

with, clean-up or repair of Mutual owned or controlled property 
made necessary by or resulting from the alteration. 

 
3.5 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the 

typical cost for roof replacement due to the solar panel installation 
shall be borne by the Member(s). 

 
3.6 The roof area for possible solar panel installation is allocated only 

to the roof space directly above the subject Manor. It is Member’s 
responsibility to ascertain and adapt to any roof interference by 
vents or other roof installations already in place. 

 
3.7 Upon sale of Member’s Manor, all obligations herein shall apply to 

all subsequent owners of the Manor. 
 

3.8 If Member discontinues use of the solar panels, Member will 
remove the panels, all associated parts, connections and wiring 
associated with the solar panels after giving notice to the Mutual 
through the Alterations Division. 

 
3.9 The solar installer and his roofer will provide a copy of the 

composition shingle manufacturer’s 40 year warranty and will 
provide a separate workmanship warranty of 5 years for the 
composition shingle roof installation. If any leaks occur on a roof so 
constructed, the solar installer will remove the solar equipment, 
repair the roof and put back the solar equipment at no cost to the 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 5 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

 
resident or Mutual. If the solar installer/roofer chooses not to 
comply with this requirement, then the Mutual Roofing Contractor 
must be hired to do the roofing work at the member’s expense. 

 
3.10. Member must present to the Mutual a vendor/installer agreement 

that requires vendor to hold harmless and indemnify the Mutual for 
any and all claims, damages, costs and expenses, including 
attorney fees related to or arising from the installation, use, 
maintenance, repair or removal of the solar panel system. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 6 of 21



ATTACHMENT 2 – CURRENT RESOLUTION 03-19-95 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 7 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 1 of 9 

STANDARD 41: SOLAR PANELS, 1 STORY BUILDINGS 
Standard 41 - Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 

ADOPTED JANUARY 2008, RESOLUTION 03-08-09 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 

REVISED OCTOBER 2014, RESOLUTION 03-14-107 
REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 03-16-08 

REVISED SEPTEMBER AUGUST 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-95 
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard 1: General Requirements  
ee Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1. In this section, “Solar Panel” refers to roof mounted panels that use 
solar energy to either heat water directly (Solar Water Heating 
System), or to generate electricity using photo-voltaic cells (Solar 
Electric System). 

2.2. This section refers only to flat roofs and pitched roofs of single 
story dwellings and the roof section of the building that covers 
the footprint of the Manor; that is unshared roof space  for 
which the request is being submitted. 

2.3. All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are 
the responsibility of the Mutual Member. 

2.4. All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the 
typical cost for roof replacement that are due to the solar panel 
installation shall be borne by the Member(s). 

2.5. Detailed, site-specific plans for all water and electrical lines for the 
solar panel installation, including penetrations, shall be submitted to 
the Manor Alterations Department for approval. 

2.6. Structural details and calculations for the installation of the 
proposed solar system existing roof structure, signed and wet-
stamped by a California-licensed engineer are required to ensure 

ATTACHMENT 3 - REDLINED REVISED STANDARD 41: 
SOLAR PANELS, 1 STORY BUILDINGS

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 8 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 2 of 9 

 

 

the solar panel system does not compromise the existing roof 
structure and that the roof is adequate to accept attachments and 
to support all applied loadings. Consult with the City for additional 
requirements. 

  
2.7. Solar Panels installed on pitched roofs with light weight tile require 

that the entire section from roof ridge to the edges be removed and 
replaced with CertainTeed Landmark TL composition shingle 
roofing on the entire roof area where the array will be located. The 
array must then be trimmed with light weight tiles (LWT) to match in 
materials and appearance of the original roof being replaced. The 
current composition shingle roofing standards for waterproofing the 
roof at the time of installation must be followed and will include a 
single layer underlayment, drip edge metal, step flashings at 
existing skylights and chimneys, penetration flashings for all vents 
and vent pipes, and valley metal at valley areas.  

  
2.8. PVC Flat roof under warranty with the Mutual's reroofing contractor 

shall require the roofing contractor holding the warranty to complete 
the roof tie-in work at the member’s expense. PVC Flat roofs that 
remain under a Johns Manville materials warranty shall require a 
Johns Manville (JM) Approved Contractor perform the tie-in work at 
the member’s expense. Solar panel installations onto roofs outside 
of the warranty periods must be water tight and meet or exceed all 
current I.C.C (International Code Council), State and City 
standards.  
 
2.6. Should the proposed location of solar panels be in an area 
that is technically Common Area, e.g., the roof, then the applicant 
is required to execute and submit to Third Laguna Hills Mutual, 
prior to installation of a solar panels, the “Agreement Regarding 
Solar Panel Installation on Common Area Property” or similarly 
titled document. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 9 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 3 of 9 

 

 

 
2.7. Structural calculations for the existing roof structure, signed and 

wet-stamped by a California-licensed structural engineer are 
required to ensure the solar panel system does not compromise the 
existing roof structure and that the roof is adequate to accept 
attachments and to support all applied loadings, per the California 
Building Code and any other applicable laws or ordinances. 

 
2.8. The mounting system must have a current Engineering 
Certification that certifies the system will be structurally adequate 
and satisfy building codes when installed per the instructions. 

 
2.9. Flat roof mounting shall be set with the highest point flush with the 

top of the parapet wall so as to be hidden from the ground or 
surrounding properties. The lowest point of the solar array 
equipment shall be a minimum of 10 inches above the flat roof. The 
top stanchions and racking used to connect the array to the roof 
shall be water tight and meet or exceed all current I.C.C 
(International Code Council), State and City standards.must be 
round and have the top of the stanchion able to be water tight. 

 
2.10. Flat roof mounting must leave a minimum of two feet between the 

panels and the parapet to permit access.The solar panel array 
must be located away from the edges of roofs and parapets as 
required by the City but not less than 24” and must maintain 
sufficient clearance (but not less than 24”) between any 
architectural features such as, but not limited to skylights, 
mechanical equipment, vent pipes and for the most direct path to 
these features in order to enable proper access for maintenance. 

 
2.11. Sloped roof mounting requires CertainTeed Landmark TL 

composition shingle roofing on the entire roof area where the array 
will be located. The array must then be trimmed with light weight 
tiles (LWT) to match in materials and appearance of the original 
roof being replaced. The current composition shingle roofing 
standards for waterproofing the roof at the time of installation must 
be followed and will include a single layer underlayment, drip edge 
metal, step flashings at existing skylights and chimneys, 
penetration flashings for all vents and vent pipes, and valley metal 
at valley areas. 

 
2.12.2.11. Water and electric lines must be set on blocking above the 

surface to facilitate re-roofing. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 10 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 
2.13.2.12. Detailed plans of the installation of roof jacks (flashing, vents, 

or planking for installation of Solar). Sshould be submitted to Manor 
Alterations for approval, the Permits and installation of roof jacks, 
including hot mopping and/or flashing, is required to be 
completed during original installation. Inspections office for 
approval. 

 
2.14.2.13. Lag screws must have adequate pullout strength and 

shear capacities. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 11 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 
2.15.2.14.  The installer is responsible for maintaining the 

waterproof integrity of the roof. Flat roofs with PVC roofing shall 
have all tie-in work completed by the Mutual Roofing Contractor at 
the Member’s expense. 

 
2.16.2.15. Connections to the manor’s electrical system must be 

coordinated with the local electric utility. 
 

2.17.2.16. Solar Electric Panels, and their associated electrical 
components, must be UL approved, or comply with equivalent 
international standards. 

 
2.18.2.17. A solar panel system may only serve a single manor.  

 
2.19. Leasing of Solar Panels is permitted only under the following 

conditions: 
a. Only prepaid leases are permitted, and Member must 

provide the Mutual a copy of the pre-paid lease contract 
together with proof of payment before any work on the 
construction or installation of the solar panel system begins; 
and 

b. The pre-paid lease contract must be assigned by the 
Member. 

 
2.18. All solar panel installations located on the roof of a unit that is 

under  mustwarranty must be inspected and approved, in 
addition to any required City inspections, by a VMS Inc. Roofing 
Inspector before the solar array is installed,  and again, after 
roof penetrations replacement are is complete, and prior to a 
final inspection of the Mutual Consent. If re-roofing is required 
for the solar panel installation, in addition to any City-required 
inspections, inspections by a Mutual inspector will be performed 
prior to finalizing the mutual consent.  
 

2.20.2.19. Approved locations for Energy Storage Devices: As per 
California and City code, all energy storage device installations 
must be inspected by OCFA. Installation must be on the exterior 
walls, in the garage, or in a California and City code compliant 
interior area of the manor. Energy storage devices visible to the 
members must be painted to match the wall it is mounted on or 
be screened with an approved enclosure that complements the 
architecture of the building.  

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 12 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 6 of 9 

 

 

 
2.21.2.20. The Mutual Consent processing time for Solar Panel 

installation requests is to be completed within 45 days from 
receipt of a complete application.  

 
 
3.0 OBLIGATIONS 

 

3.1 The Mutual Member must sign and submit to Third Laguna Hills 
Mutual, c/o VMS, Inc, Community Services, the “Recordable 
Common Area Agreement” for the subject solar panel installation 
utilizing Common Area. 

 
3.1 Due to all exterior locations classified as ‘exclusive use common 

area’ or ‘common area’, a Common Area Exclusive Use Revocable 
License or equivalent current document for Mutual approval to 
provide rights to utilize common area must be completed prior to 
the installation of any solar array.  

  
3.2 Member accepts responsibility and agrees to pay for repairs to 

common areas, including but not limited to roofing, framing, wiring 
and drywall caused, in whole or in part, by Member’s solar panels 
or their installation, operation, maintenance or removal;, and,  
Member accepts all responsibility for damage to Member’s Manor 
or other Manors or to personal property caused or contributed to by 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 13 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 
the installation, operation, maintenance or removal of the solar 
panels. 

 
3.3 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated 

with removing, altering, covering or reinstalling the alteration as 
may be necessary or appropriate to allow the Mutual to conduct 
maintenance or repairs of common area. The Mutual will 
endeavor to give If the Mutual gives a minimum of thirty (30) 
days advance written notice (unless it is an emergency) of the 
need to remove, alter, cover or replace the solar panel. Failure to 
complete the required work within the allowed time will require 
that the Mutual perform the  and the Member does not 
accomplish this within five calendar days before the removal, 
alteration, or covering  is necessary, then the Mutual will 
accomplish the removal, alteration or covering at the Member’s 
cost, which will be billed as a Chargeable Service to the Member. 
Re-installation of any components removed by the Mutual as a 
chargeable service remains the responsibility of the member.  

 
3.4 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated 

with, clean-up or repair of Mutual owned or controlled property 
made necessary by or resulting from the alteration. 

 
3.5 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the 

typical cost for roof replacement due to the solar panel installation 
shall be borne by the Member(s). 

 
3.6 The roof area for possible solar panel installation is allocated only 

to the roof space directly above the subject Manor. It is Member’s 
responsibility to ascertain and adapt to any roof interference by 
vents or other roof installations already in place. 

 
3.7 Upon sale of Member’s Manor, all obligations herein shall apply to 

all subsequent owners of the Manor. 
 

3.8 If Member discontinues use of the solar panels, Member will 
remove the panels, all associated parts, connections and wiring 
associated with the solar panels after giving notice to the Mutual 
through the Alterations Division. 

 
3.93.8 When applicable, Tthe solar installer and his roofer will provide a 

copy of the composition shingle manufacturer’s 40 year warranty 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 14 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 8 of 9 

 

 

and will provide a separate workmanship labor and materials 
warranty of 5 years for the composition shingle roof installation. If 
any leaks occur on a roof so constructed, the solar installer will 
remove the solar equipment, repair the roof and put back the solar 
equipment at no cost to the 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 15 of 21



Standard 41 – Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 

 
resident or Mutual. If the solar installer/roofer chooses not to 
comply with this requirement, then the Mutual Roofing Contractor 
must be hired to do the roofing work at the member’s expense. 

 
3.10. Member must present to the Mutual a vendor/installer agreement 

that requires vendor to hold harmless and indemnify the Mutual for 
any and all claims, damages, costs and expenses, including 
attorney fees related to or arising from the installation, use, 
maintenance, repair or removal of the solar panel system. 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 16 of 21



STANDARD 41: SOLAR PANELS, 1 STORY BUILDINGS 
ADOPTED JANUARY 2008, RESOLUTION 03-08-09 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 
REVISED OCTOBER 2014, RESOLUTION 03-14-107 
REVISED JANUARY 2016, RESOLUTION 03-16-08 

REVISED SEPTEMBER 2019, RESOLUTION 03-19-95 
REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard 1: General Requirements 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1 Solar Panel refers to roof mounted panels that use solar energy to either 
heat water directly (Solar Water Heating System), or to generate electricity 
using photo-voltaic cells (Solar Electric System). 

2.2 This section refers to flat roofs and pitched roofs of single story dwellings 
and the roof section of the building that covers the footprint of the Manor; 
that is unshared roof space for which the request is being submitted. 

2.3 All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the 
responsibility of the Mutual Member. 

2.4 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the typical 
cost for roof replacement that are due to the solar panel installation shall 
be borne by the Member(s). 

2.5 Detailed, site-specific plans for all water and electrical lines for the solar 
panel installation, including penetrations, shall be submitted to the Manor 
Alterations Department for approval. 

2.6 Structural details and calculations for the installation of the proposed solar 
system existing roof structure, signed and wet-stamped by a California-
licensed engineer are required to ensure the solar panel system does not 

ATTACHMENT 4 - FINAL DRAFT STANDARD 41:  SOLAR PANELS, 1 
STORY BUILDINGS 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 17 of 21



compromise the existing roof structure and that the roof is adequate to 
accept attachments and to support all applied loadings. Consult with the 
City for additional requirements. 

 
2.7 Solar Panels installed on pitched roofs with light weight tile require that the 

entire section from roof ridge to the edges be removed and replaced with 
CertainTeed Landmark TL composition shingle roofing on the entire roof 
area where the array will be located. The array must then be trimmed with 
light weight tiles (LWT) to match in materials and appearance of the 
original roof being replaced. The current composition shingle roofing 
standards for waterproofing the roof at the time of installation must be 
followed and will include a single layer underlayment, drip edge metal, 
step flashings at existing skylights and chimneys, penetration flashings for 
all vents and vent pipes, and valley metal at valley areas.  
 

2.8 PVC Flat roof under warranty with the Mutual's reroofing contractor shall 
require the roofing contractor holding the warranty to complete the roof tie-
in work at the member’s expense. PVC Flat roofs that remain under a 
Johns Manville materials warranty shall require a Johns Manville (JM) 
Approved Contractor perform the tie-in work at the member’s expense. 
Solar panel installations onto roofs outside of the warranty periods must 
be water tight and meet or exceed all current I.C.C (International Code 
Council), State and City standards.  
 

2.9 Flat roof mounting shall be set with the highest point flush with the top of 
the parapet wall so as to be hidden from the ground or surrounding 
properties. The lowest point of the solar array equipment shall be a 
minimum of 10 inches above the flat roof. The top stanchions and racking 
used to connect the array to the roof shall be water tight and meet or 
exceed all current I.C.C (International Code Council), State and City 
standards. 
 

2.10 The solar panel array must be located away from the edges of roofs and 
parapets as required by the City but not less than 24” and must maintain 
sufficient clearance (but not less than 24”) between any architectural 
features such as, but not limited to skylights, mechanical equipment, vent 
pipes and for the most direct path to these features in order to enable 
proper access for maintenance. 
 

2.11 Water and electric lines must be set on blocking above the surface to 
facilitate re-roofing. 
 

2.12 Detailed plans of the installation of roof jacks (flashing, vents, or planking 
for installation of Solar). Should be submitted to Manor Alterations for 
approval, and installation of roof jacks, including hot mopping and/or 
flashing, is required to be completed during original installation.  

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 18 of 21



 
2.13 Lag screws must have adequate pullout strength and shear capacities. 

 
2.14  The installer is responsible for maintaining the waterproof integrity of the 

roof.  
 

2.15 Connections to the manor’s electrical system must be coordinated with the 
local electric utility. 
 

2.16 Solar Electric Panels, and their associated electrical components, must be 
UL approved, or comply with equivalent international standards. 
 

2.17 A solar panel system may only serve a single manor.  
 

2.18 All solar panel installations located on the roof of a unit that is under 
warranty must be inspected and approved, in addition to any required City 
inspections, by a VMS Inc. Roofing Inspector before the solar array is 
installed, after roof penetrations are complete, and prior to a final 
inspection of the Mutual Consent. If re-roofing is required for the solar 
panel installation, in addition to any City-required inspections, inspections 
by a Mutual inspector will be performed prior to finalizing the mutual 
consent.  
 

2.19 Approved locations for Energy Storage Devices: As per California and City 
code, all energy storage device installations must be inspected by OCFA. 
Installation must be on the exterior walls, in the garage, or in a California 
and City code compliant interior area of the manor. Energy storage 
devices visible to the members must be painted to match the wall it is 
mounted on or be screened with an approved enclosure that complements 
the architecture of the building.  
 

2.20 The Mutual Consent processing time for Solar Panel installation requests 
is to be completed within 45 days from receipt of a complete application.  

 
 

3.0 OBLIGATIONS 
 

 

3.1 Due to all exterior locations classified as ‘exclusive use common area’ or 
‘common area’, a Common Area Exclusive Use Revocable License or 
equivalent current document for Mutual approval to provide rights to utilize 
common area must be completed prior to the installation of any solar 
array.  

 
3.2 Member accepts responsibility and agrees to pay for repairs to common 

areas, including but not limited to roofing, framing, wiring and drywall 
caused, in whole or in part, by Member’s solar panels or their installation, 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 19 of 21



operation, maintenance or removal; and, Member accepts all responsibility 
for damage to Member’s Manor or other Manors or to personal property 
caused or contributed to by the installation, operation, maintenance or 
removal of the solar panels. 
 

3.3 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated with 
removing, altering, covering or reinstalling the alteration as may be 
necessary or appropriate to allow the Mutual to conduct maintenance or 
repairs of common area. The Mutual will endeavor to give a minimum of 
thirty (30) days advance written notice (unless it is an emergency) of the 
need to remove, alter, cover or replace the solar panel. Failure to 
complete the required work within the allowed time will require that the 
Mutual perform the removal, alteration, or covering at the Member’s cost, 
which will be billed as a Chargeable Service to the Member. Re-
installation of any components removed by the Mutual as a chargeable 
service remains the responsibility of the member.  
 

3.4 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated with, 
clean-up or repair of Mutual owned or controlled property made necessary 
by or resulting from the alteration. 
 

3.5 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the typical 
cost for roof replacement due to the solar panel installation shall be borne 
by the Member(s). 
 

3.6 The roof area for possible solar panel installation is allocated only to the 
roof space directly above the subject Manor. It is Member’s responsibility 
to ascertain and adapt to any roof interference by vents or other roof 
installations already in place. 
 

3.7 Upon sale of Member’s Manor, all obligations herein shall apply to all 
subsequent owners of the Manor. 
 

3.8 When applicable, the solar installer and his roofer will provide a copy of 
the composition shingle manufacturer’s warranty and will provide a 
separate labor and materials warranty of 5 years for the composition 
shingle roof installation. If any leaks occur on a roof so constructed, the 
solar installer will remove the solar equipment, repair the roof and put 
back the solar equipment at no cost to the Mutual. If the solar 
installer/roofer chooses not to comply with this requirement, then the 
Mutual Roofing Contractor must be hired to do the roofing work at the 
member’s expense.  

 
 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 20 of 21



ATTACHMENT 5 – REVISED RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 

 

RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 
Alteration Standard 41: 

 Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings and Buildings 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (Board) 
recognizes the need to amend Standards and create new Standards as 
necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to revise Standard 41 - Solar 
Panels, 1 Story Buildings;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], that the Board hereby adopts 
Standard 41 - Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings as attached to the official meeting 
minutes; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-19-95 adopted September 17, 
2019, is hereby superseded in its entirety and no longer in effect; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this resolution as 
written. 

 

APRIL INITIAL NOTIFICATION: Should the Board endorse the proposed 
revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution 
reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a 
Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board 
Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil 
Code §4360 

 

Agenda Item #10a 
Page 21 of 21



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 10, 2023 
FOR: Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
SUBJECT: Reenact Architectural Standard 41A (Previously Standard 45) Solar Panels, 

2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Buildings 

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommended that the Board of Directors approve a resolution to reenact Standard 41A 
(Previously Standard 45): Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Building.   

BACKGROUND 
The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) initiated a review to reenact 
Standard 41A to allow for installations of solar panels in 2-story and 3-story buildings. Standard 
41A was rescinded in June 2018, via Resolution 03-18-85 (Attachment 1).  

DISCUSSION 
On February 27, 2023, the ACSC reviewed the proposed new Standard 41A and directed staff 
to make additional revisions for applicability, usefulness, and current technology. The revisions 
are included in the revised Standard 41A (Attachment 3) and will be presented by staff for 
committee review at the April 10, 2023 ACSC Meeting.  

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The installation of solar panels will be considered an alteration and the installation cost will be 
the responsibility of the requesting mutual member. The cost to repair any damage to mutual 
property resulting from an alteration solar panel will also be borne by the responsible mutual 
member.  

Prepared By: Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director 

Reviewed By: Michael Horton, Manor Alterations Manager 
 Gavin Fogg, Manor Alterations Supervisor 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Current Resolution 03-18-85 Rescinding Standard 45 
Attachment 2 – Revised Draft Standard 41A: Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story 

Buildings 
Attachment 3 – Reenacted Resolution 03-23-XX 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 1 of 12



ATTACHMENT 1 – CURRENT RESOLUTION 03-18-85 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 2 of 12



STANDARD 41A: SOLAR PANELS, 2 STORY BUILDINGS AND 3 STORY 
BUILDINGS 

ADOPTED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-23-X 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard 1: General Requirements 

2.0 APPLICATIONS 

2.1 Solar Panel refers to roof mounted panels that use solar energy to either 
heat water directly (Solar Water Heating System), or to generate electricity 
using photo-voltaic cells (Solar Electric System). 

2.2 This section refers to flat roofs and pitched roofs with shared roof space. 
The system shall be designed so the panel array does not encroach 
outside of the area allocated on the roof for each owner of a manor. Refer 
to Pages 8, 9, 10 and 11 for roof allocation on flat roofs of 6-,8-, and 12- 
unit buildings respectively. Roof allocation plans for all other types of roofs 
will be prepared by Manor Alterations when a request is received.  

2.3 All costs and maintenance of the alteration, present and future, are the 
responsibility of the Mutual Member. 

2.4 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the typical 
cost for roof replacement that are due to the solar panel installation shall 
be borne by the Member(s). 

2.5 Detailed, site-specific plans for all water and electrical lines for the solar 
panel installation, including penetrations, shall be submitted to the Manor 
Alterations Department for approval. 

2.6 Structural details and calculations for the installation of the proposed solar 
system existing roof structure, signed and wet-stamped by a California-
licensed engineer are required to ensure the solar panel system does not 
compromise the existing roof structure and that the roof is adequate to 
accept attachments and to support all applied loadings. Consult with the 

ATTACHMENT 2 - REVISED DRAFT STANDARD 41A: SOLAR 
PANELS, 2 STORY BUILDINGS AND 3 STORY BUILDINGS 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 3 of 12



City for additional requirements. 
 

2.7 Solar Panels installed on pitched roofs with light weight tile require that the 
entire section from roof ridge to the edges be removed and replaced with 
CertainTeed Landmark TL composition shingle roofing on the entire roof 
area where the array will be located. The array must then be trimmed with 
light weight tiles (LWT) to match in materials and appearance of the 
original roof being replaced. The current composition shingle roofing 
standards for waterproofing the roof at the time of installation must be 
followed and will include a single layer underlayment, drip edge metal, 
step flashings at existing skylights and chimneys, penetration flashings for 
all vents and vent pipes, and valley metal at valley areas.  
 

2.8 PVC Flat roof under warranty with the Mutual's reroofing contractor shall 
require the roofing contractor holding the warranty to complete the roof tie-
in work at the member’s expense. PVC Flat roofs that remain under a 
Johns Manville materials warranty shall require a Johns Manville (JM) 
Approved Contractor perform the tie-in work at the member’s expense. 
Solar panel installations onto roofs outside of the warranty periods must 
be water tight and meet or exceed all current I.C.C (International Code 
Council), State and City standards.  
 

2.9 Flat roof mounting shall be set with the highest point flush with the top of 
the parapet wall so as to be hidden from the ground or surrounding 
properties. The lowest point of the solar array equipment shall be a 
minimum of 10 inches above the flat roof. The top stanchions and racking 
used to connect the array to the roof shall be water tight and meet or 
exceed all current I.C.C (International Code Council), State and City 
standards. 
 

2.10 The solar panel array must be located away from the edges of roofs and 
parapets as required by the City but not less than 24” and must maintain 
sufficient clearance (but not less than 24”) between any architectural 
features such as, but not limited to skylights, mechanical equipment, vent 
pipes and for the most direct path to these features in order to enable 
proper access for maintenance. 
 

2.11 Water and electric lines must be set on blocking above the surface to 
facilitate re-roofing. 
 

2.12 Detailed plans of the installation of roof jacks (flashing, vents, or planking 
for installation of Solar). Should be submitted to Manor Alterations for 
approval, and installation of roof jacks, including hot mopping and/or 
flashing, is required to be completed during original installation.  

 
2.13 Lag screws must have adequate pullout strength and shear capacities. 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 4 of 12



 
2.14  The installer is responsible for maintaining the waterproof integrity of the 

roof.  
 

2.15 Connections to the manor’s electrical system must be coordinated with the 
local electric utility. 
 

2.16 Solar Electric Panels, and their associated electrical components, must be 
UL approved, or comply with equivalent international standards. 
 

2.17 A solar panel system may only serve a single manor.  
 

2.18 All solar panel installations located on the roof of a unit that is under 
warranty must be inspected and approved, in addition to any required City 
inspections, by a VMS Inc. Roofing Inspector before the solar array is 
installed, after roof penetrations are complete, and prior to a final 
inspection of the Mutual Consent. If re-roofing is required for the solar 
panel installation, in addition to any City-required inspections, inspections 
by a Mutual inspector will be performed prior to finalizing the mutual 
consent.  
 

2.19 Approved locations for Energy Storage Devices: As per California and City 
code, all energy storage device installations must be inspected by OCFA. 
Installation must be on the exterior walls, in the garage, or in a California 
and City code compliant interior area of the manor. Energy storage 
devices visible to the members must be painted to match the wall it is 
mounted on or be screened with an approved enclosure that complements 
the architecture of the building.  
 

2.20 The Mutual Consent processing time for Solar Panel installation requests 
is to be completed within 45 days from receipt of a complete application.  

 
 

3.0 OBLIGATIONS 
 

 

3.1 Due to all exterior locations classified as ‘exclusive use common area’ or 
‘common area’, a Common Area Exclusive Use Revocable License or 
equivalent current document for Mutual approval to provide rights to utilize 
common area must be completed prior to the installation of any solar 
array.  

 
3.2 Member accepts responsibility and agrees to pay for repairs to common 

areas, including but not limited to roofing, framing, wiring and drywall 
caused, in whole or in part, by Member’s solar panels or their installation, 
operation, maintenance or removal; and, Member accepts all responsibility 
for damage to Member’s Manor or other Manors or to personal property 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 5 of 12



caused or contributed to by the installation, operation, maintenance or 
removal of the solar panels. 
 

3.3 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated with 
removing, altering, covering or reinstalling the alteration as may be 
necessary or appropriate to allow the Mutual to conduct maintenance or 
repairs of common area. The Mutual will endeavor to give a minimum of 
thirty (30) days advance written notice (unless it is an emergency) of the 
need to remove, alter, cover or replace the solar panel. Failure to 
complete the required work within the allowed time will require that the 
Mutual perform the removal, alteration, or covering at the Member’s cost, 
which will be billed as a Chargeable Service to the Member. Re-
installation of any components removed by the Mutual as a chargeable 
service remains the responsibility of the member.  
 

3.4 The Member is responsible for, and will bear all costs associated with, 
clean-up or repair of Mutual owned or controlled property made necessary 
by or resulting from the alteration. 
 

3.5 All costs associated with roof replacement above and beyond the typical 
cost for roof replacement due to the solar panel installation shall be borne 
by the Member(s). 
 

3.6 The roof area for possible solar panel installation is allocated only to the 
roof space directly above the subject Manor. It is Member’s responsibility 
to ascertain and adapt to any roof interference by vents or other roof 
installations already in place. 
 

3.7 Upon sale of Member’s Manor, all obligations herein shall apply to all 
subsequent owners of the Manor. 
 

3.8 When applicable, the solar installer and his roofer will provide a copy of 
the composition shingle manufacturer’s warranty and will provide a 
separate labor and materials warranty of 5 years for the composition 
shingle roof installation. If any leaks occur on a roof so constructed, the 
solar installer will remove the solar equipment, repair the roof and put 
back the solar equipment at no cost to the Mutual. If the solar 
installer/roofer chooses not to comply with this requirement, then the 
Mutual Roofing Contractor must be hired to do the roofing work at the 
member’s expense.  

 
 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 6 of 12



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 7 of 12



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 8 of 12



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 9 of 12



Agenda Item #10b 
Page 10 of 12



 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 11 of 12



ATTACHMENT 3 – REENACTED RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 

 

 

RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 
Alteration Standard 41A:  

Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Buildings 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Third Laguna Hills Mutual (Board) 
recognizes the need to amend Standards and create new Standards as 
necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to reenact Standard 41A 
(Previously Standard 45) - Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings with Flat Roofs; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], that the Board hereby adopts 
Standard 41A - Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Buildings as 
attached to the official meeting minutes; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-18-85 adopted June 19, 2018, is 
hereby superseded in its entirety and no longer in effect; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized, on behalf of the Corporation, to carry out this resolution as 
written. 

 

APRIL INITIAL NOTIFICATION: Should the Board endorse the proposed 
revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution 
reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a 
Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board 
Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil 
Code §4360 

Agenda Item #10b 
Page 12 of 12



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: April 10, 2023 
FOR:  Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
SUBJECT: Revision to Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installations 

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend that the Board of Directors approve a resolution to revise Standard 31: Washer & 
Dryer Installations. 

BACKGROUND 
The Architectural Controls and Standards Committee (ACSC) initiated a review of the current 
Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installation (Attachment 1) and proposed revisions to the Standard 
to allow for the installation of washers and dryers in 3-story buildings.  Standard 31 was last 
revised in December 2018, via Resolution 03-18-156 (Attachment 2). 

DISCUSSION 
On January 17, 2023, the Third Board reviewed the ACSC recommendation and directed staff 
to make additional revisions to the Standard (Attachment 3) and deferred the matter for 28-day 
member review.  

On February 21,2023, the Third Board again reviewed the proposed revisions and voted to table 
the matter until the Garden Villa Association had an opportunity to discuss the topic at their 
March 9th meeting. 

On March 9, 2023, the Garden Villa Association discussed the proposed Standard 31 revisions. 
Extensive discussion took place and included concerns with noise and plumbing. The discussion 
also included an option to revise the proposed Standard to only apply to those buildings that 
have been epoxy coated. There was no consensus in support or against the Standard as 
presented or for the option that excludes unlined buildings. 

Staff is presenting the proposed revised Standard (Attachment 4) and accompanying resolution 
(Attachment 5) to the ACSC for additional consideration before presenting the matter again to 
the full board.  The proposed revisions are intended to reflect the current Building Codes, 
Municipal Codes, or mutual policies to allow for the installation of washers and dryers in 3-story 
buildings. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The installation of the washers and dryers will be considered an alteration and the installation 
cost will be the responsibility of the requesting mutual member. The cost to repair any damage 
to mutual property resulting from an alteration washer and dryer will also be borne by the 
responsible mutual member. 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 1 of 12



Third Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
Revision to Architectural Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installations 
04/10/2023 
Page 2 
 
Prepared By:  Baltazar Mejia, Maintenance & Construction Assistant Director 
     
Reviewed By:  Michael Horton, Manor Alterations Manager 
     Gavin Fogg, Manor Alterations Supervisor 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Attachment 1 – Current Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installations 
Attachment 2 – Current Resolution 03-18-156 
Attachment 3 – Redlined Revised Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installations 
Attachment 4 – Final Draft Standard 31: Washer & Dryer Installations 
Attachment 5 – Revised Resolution 03-23-XX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 2 of 12



STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER INSTALLATIONS 
APRIL 1991 

REVISED DECEMBER 1998, RESOLUTION M3-98-65  
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 
REVISED DECEMBER 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-156 

1.0  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

2.0 EXTERIOR CABINETS 

2.1 All patio installations shall be enclosed in a cabinet which meets all 
manufacturer's requirements. 

2.2 The cabinet design shall be submitted to the Alterations Division prior 
to issuance of a Mutual Consent. The design shall address protection 
of the equipment from the elements. 

2.3 Cabinets must be obscured from public view (i.e., block wall, closed 
patio). 

2.4 Cabinets to be painted to match existing color of building. 

2.5 Location of unit and/or plumbing connections must be submitted in 
writing to the the Alterations Division prior to issuance of a Mutual 
Consent. 

2.6 A Mutual Consent will be not be issued for manors that do not qualify 
as determined by existing waste line sizes. Minimum sizes are 3" ABS 
plastic and 3" cast iron. 

2.7 All penetrations through existing walls shall be properly flashed and 
caulked to provide a weather tight seal around all protruding plumbing, 
electrical and vent lines. 

ATTACHMENT 1 - CURRENT STANDARD 31

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 3 of 12



2.8 Connections below slab shall be properly vented and covered with 
sand and "Visqueen" before replacement of concrete. 

2.9 All hot and cold water supply lines shall be of minimum 1/2" diameter, 
type L copper. 

2.10 All pressure lines shall be securely strapped to prevent movement or 
knocking. 

2.11 All electrical wiring to be located in walls. No exposed conduit will be 
permitted. 

2.12 The installation of washers and dryers in three-story buildings is 
prohibited and variance requests for washers and dryers in three-
story buildings will not be accepted. 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 4 of 12



ATTACHMENT 2 – CURRENT RESOLUTION 03-18-156 

RESOLUTION 03-18-156 
REVISE ALTERATION STANDARD 31: WASHER AND DRY INSTALLATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee 
recognizes the need to amend Alteration Standards and create new 
Alteration Standards as necessary; and, 

WHEREAS, the Architectural Control and Standard Committee 
recognizes the need to revise Alteration Standard 31: Washer and Dry 
Installations; and 

WHEREAS, Resolution M3-98-65 ceased the acceptance of variance 
requests for installations of washers and dryers in three-story buildings 
and, by inference, “grandfathered” previous permitted installations of 
washers and dryers. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 29, 2018, that the 
Board of Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts Alteration Standard 
31: Washer and Dry Installations as attached to the official meeting 
minutes; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution M3-98-65 adopted December, 
1998, is hereby superseded in its entirety and no longer in effect; 

RESOLVED FURTHER; all washer and dryers installed in three story 
buildings with a Mutual Consent prior to December 15, 1998, continue to 
be “grandfathered;” 

RESOLVED FURTHER, all washers and dryers installed after December 
15, 1998, or without a Mutual Consent, shall be removed at the sole 
expense of the owner upon its discovery; 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation 
are hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this 
resolution as written. 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 5 of 12



ATTACHMENT 3- REDLINED REVISED STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER 
INSTALLATIONS 

 

 
 

STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER INSTALLATIONS 
APRIL 1991 

REVISED DECEMBER 1998, RESOLUTION M3-98-65 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 
REVISED DECEMBER 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-156 

REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 
 
 
 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

 
2.0 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 Location of units and/or plumbing connections must be submitted in 
writing to the Alterations Division prior to issuance of a Mutual 
Consent. 

2.2 A Mutual Consent will be not be issued for the installation of new 
washers and dryers for manors that do not meet the minimum 
waste line flow calculations. 

2.3 All hot and cold water supply lines shall be of minimum 1/2" 
diameter, type L copper and as required by the current City-adopted 
Building code. 

2.4 All pressure lines shall be securely strapped to prevent movement 
or knocking. 

2.5 All electrical wiring to be located in walls. No exposed conduit will be 
permitted. 

2.6 Washers and dryers in multi-story buildings or manors with common 
walls, ceiling/floors must be the quietest available on the market at 
the time of installation, but in no case should the washer exceed 70 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 6 of 12



db and the dryer 65 db. All installations must include commercial 
grade anti-vibration pads for the legs of the approved appliance.  

2.7 Any flooring on which a washer/dryer is being installed must meet 
field impact insulation class (FIIC) rating of 50 as defined in the 
American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) E 1007 
standard as per Standard 11A: Interior Hard-Surface Flooring 
requirements.  

 

2.03.0 EXTERIOR CABINETS  

2.13.1 All patio installations shall be enclosed in a cabinet which meets all 
manufacturer's requirements. 

2.23.2 The cabinet design shall be submitted to the Alterations Division 
prior to issuance of a Mutual Consent. The design shall address 
protection of the equipment from the elements as well as the 
architecture of the building.  

2.33.3 Cabinets must be obscured from public view (i.e., block wall, closed 
patio). 

2.43.4 Cabinets to be painted to match existing color of building. 

2.53.5 All penetrations through existing walls shall be properly flashed and 
caulked to provide a weather tight seal around all protruding 
plumbing, electrical and vent lines.Location of unit and/or plumbing 
connections must be submitted in writing to the Alterations Division 
prior to issuance of a Mutual Consent. 

2.63.6 Connections below slab shall be properly vented and covered with 
sand and "Visqueen" before replacement of concrete. A Mutual 
Consent will be not be issued for manors that do not qualify as 
determined by existing waste line sizes.  

2.7 All penetrations through existing walls shall be properly flashed and 
caulked to provide a weather tight seal around all protruding 
plumbing, electrical and vent lines. 

2.8 Connections below slab shall be properly vented and covered with 
sand and "Visqueen" before replacement of concrete. 

2.9 All hot and cold water supply lines shall be of minimum 1/2" 
diameter, type L copper  

2.10 All pressure lines shall be securely strapped to prevent movement 
or knocking. 

2.11 All electrical wiring to be located in walls. No exposed conduit will 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 7 of 12



be permitted. 

 

4.0 INSTALLATION IN THREE-STORY BUILDINGS 

 

4.1 The installation of washers and dryers in three-story buildings is 
prohibited and variance requests for washers and dryers in three- 
story buildings will not be accepted. may be permitted under one of 
the following conditions:  

a. For building with waste lines that have been recently (less 
than five years) epoxy-lined, a licensed engineer must 
confirm that the existing waste line has the capacity to 
handle the additional flow from these appliances.  

b. For buildings with the original waste lines, a licensed 
engineer must verify that the existing waste lines have the 
capacity to handle the additional flow. Any approved 
installations will require that the waste line be cleared of 
any obstructions and/or build up. Depending on the 
condition of the waste line, the Member may be required to 
replace or epoxy-line the waste line from the washer to the 
main line. The engineer of record must certify that the 
waste line meets the requirements of the design.  

2.124.2 All installations must have an appropriate plastic pan 
designed to catch any liquid that may inadvertently leak or be 
spilled.  

4.3 All washer hook ups shall be required to have a leak detecting 
automatic shut off system installed as per manufacturers 
requirements and meet current California Plumbing Code at the 
time of install.  

2.134.4 New dryers must be ventless unless unfeasible. If a 
conventional dryer is the only option, any penetrations made on 
Mutual-owned flat PVC roofs requires express approval by the 
Mutual via Mutual Consent. For roofs under warranty, the roofing 
contractor holding the warranty shall be hired to complete the roof 
tie-in work.  

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 8 of 12



ATTACHMENT 4- FINAL DRAFT STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER 
INSTALLATIONS 

 

 
 

STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER INSTALLATIONS 
APRIL 1991 

REVISED DECEMBER 1998, RESOLUTION M3-98-65 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED APRIL 2011, RESOLUTION 03-11-49 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS REVISED JANUARY 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-12 
REVISED DECEMBER 2018, RESOLUTION 03-18-156 

REVISED [DATE], RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 
 
 
 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

See Standard Section 1: General Requirements 

 
2.0 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 

2.1 Location of units and/or plumbing connections must be submitted in 
writing to the Alterations Division prior to issuance of a Mutual 
Consent. 

2.2 A Mutual Consent will be not be issued for the installation of new 
washers and dryers for manors that do not meet the minimum 
waste line flow calculations. 

2.3 All hot and cold water supply lines shall be of minimum 1/2" 
diameter, type L copper and as required by the current City-adopted 
Building code. 

2.4 All pressure lines shall be securely strapped to prevent movement 
or knocking. 

2.5 All electrical wiring to be located in walls. No exposed conduit will be 
permitted. 

2.6 Washers and dryers in multi-story buildings or manors with common 
walls, ceiling/floors must be the quietest available on the market at 
the time of installation, but in no case should the washer exceed 70 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 9 of 12



db and the dryer 65 db. All installations must include commercial 
grade anti-vibration pads for the legs of the approved appliance.  

2.7 Any flooring on which a washer/dryer is being installed must meet 
field impact insulation class (FIIC) rating of 50 as defined in the 
American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) E 1007 
standard as per Standard 11A: Interior Hard-Surface Flooring 
requirements.  

 

3.0 EXTERIOR CABINETS  

3.1 All patio installations shall be enclosed in a cabinet which meets all 
manufacturer's requirements. 

3.2 The cabinet design shall be submitted to the Alterations Division 
prior to issuance of a Mutual Consent. The design shall address 
protection of the equipment from the elements as well as the 
architecture of the building.  

3.3 Cabinets must be obscured from public view (i.e., block wall, closed 
patio). 

3.4 Cabinets to be painted to match existing color of building. 

3.5 All penetrations through existing walls shall be properly flashed and 
caulked to provide a weather tight seal around all protruding 
plumbing, electrical and vent lines. 

3.6 Connections below slab shall be properly vented and covered with 
sand and "Visqueen" before replacement of concrete.  

 

4.0 INSTALLATION IN THREE-STORY BUILDINGS 

4.1 The installation of washers and dryers in three-story buildings may 
be permitted under one of the following conditions:  

a. For building with waste lines that have been recently (less 
than five years) epoxy-lined, a licensed engineer must 
confirm that the existing waste line has the capacity to 
handle the additional flow from these appliances.  

b. For buildings with the original waste lines, a licensed 
engineer must verify that the existing waste lines have the 
capacity to handle the additional flow. Any approved 
installations will require that the waste line be cleared of 
any obstructions and/or build up. Depending on the 
condition of the waste line, the Member may be required to 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 10 of 12



replace or epoxy-line the waste line from the washer to the 
main line. The engineer of record must certify that the 
waste line meets the requirements of the design.  

4.2 All installations must have an appropriate plastic pan designed to 
catch any liquid that may inadvertently leak or be spilled.  

4.3 All washer hook ups shall be required to have a leak detecting 
automatic shut off system installed as per manufacturers 
requirements and meet current California Plumbing Code at the 
time of install.  

4.4 New dryers must be ventless unless unfeasible. If a conventional 
dryer is the only option, any penetrations made on Mutual-owned 
flat PVC roofs requires express approval by the Mutual via Mutual 
Consent. For roofs under warranty, the roofing contractor holding 
the warranty shall be hired to complete the roof tie-in work.  

 
 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 11 of 12



ATTACHMENT 5 – REVISED RESOLUTION  

 

RESOLUTION 03-23-XX 
STANDARD 31: WASHER AND DRYER INSTALLATIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes 
the need to amend Standards and create new Standards as necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Architectural Controls and Standards Committee recognizes 
the need to revise Alteration Standard 31: Washer and Dryer Installations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution M3-98-65 ceased the acceptance of variance requests 
for installations of washers and dryers in three-story buildings and, by inference, 
“grandfathered” previous permitted installations of washers and dryers; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, [DATE], that the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts Standard 31: Washer and Dryer Installations as 
attached to the official meeting minutes; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 03-18-156 adopted November 29, 
2018, is hereby superseded in its entirety and no longer in effect; and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, all washer and dryers installed in three story buildings 
with a Mutual Consent prior to March 21, 2023 continue to be “grandfathered”; 
and 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution as 
written. 
 

APRIL INITIAL NOTIFICATION: Should the Board endorse the proposed 
revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution 
reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  Staff then recommends that a Board 
Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no 
less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360 

Agenda Item #10c 
Page 12 of 12


	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Third ACSC - Agenda April 10, 2023 Agenda Packet.pdf
	Binder7.pdf
	Manor Cover Page.pdf

	Agenda Item #9d 3364-2F Installing condenser on balcony stucco wall.pdf
	Agenda Item #9d 3364-2F Installing condenser on balcony stucco wall.pdf
	Agenda Item #9d 3364-2F Installing condenser on balcony stucco wall.pdf
	3364-2F COA Draft.pdf

	3364-2F Resolution Draft.pdf






	Agenda Item #10a Revision to Architectural Standard 41 Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings.pdf
	Attachment 4 Final Draft Standard 41 Solar Panels 1 Story Buildings.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 3 Redlined Revised Standard 41.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 5 Revised Resolution 03-23-XX Standard 41.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 1 Current Standard 41.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Staff Report Revision to Standard 41 Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Agenda Item #10a Revision to Architectural Standard 41 Solar Panels, 1 Story Buildings.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Standard 41 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 2 Current Resolution 03-19-95.pdf














	Agenda Item #10b Reenact Architectural Standard 41A (Previously 45) Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Buildings.pdf
	Attachment 2 Final Draft Standard 41A Solar Panels, 2 Story Buildings and 3 Story Buildings.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Attachment 3 Reenacted Resolution 03-23-XX Standard 41A MG.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Staff Report Reenact to Standard 41A.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Standard 41A Packet.pdf
	Attachment 1 Current Resolution 03-18-85.pdf











	Agenda Item#10c Revision to Architectural Standard 31 Washer and Dryer Installations.pdf
	Attachment 4 Final Draft Standard 31 Washer and Dryer Installations.pdf
	1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
	2.0 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS
	3.0 EXTERIOR CABINETS
	4.0 INSTALLATION IN THREE-STORY BUILDINGS

	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 3 Third ACSC Redlined Std 31.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Staff_Report_Standard 31 Washer Dryer Installations.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 5 Revised Resolution 03-23-XX.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Standard No 31 Packet.pdf
	Attachment 1 Current Standard-31-Washer-and-Dryer-Installations.pdf
	STANDARD 31: WASHER & DRYER INSTALLATIONS


	Attachment  2  Current Resolution.pdf
























